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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 16, 2015 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2015-1018 
1507 E. 14TH STREET 

 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1949 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled frame house with single and paired 1:1 windows 
with 3:1 wooden screens (now boarded up); partial-width, shed-roofed independent porch on 
ornamental metal supports; two-story, rectangular-plan, rear-gabled, frame addition to the 
rear.  
RESEARCH 

The house was built in 1949 by Rev. S.L. and Willie C. Davis, replacing a ca. 1910 house on 
the site.  That earlier house had been the home of a blacksmith until around 1919, when it 
was rented by Cora DeWitty, an African-American laundress, and her family, several of 
whom became prominent in the African-American community in Austin.   The DeWitty 
family lived here until around 1923; the house was then a rental property for several 
African-American families, until it was purchased by Rev. Silas L. and Willie Davis around 
1939. 
Silas L. Davis was born in Dale, Caldwell County, Texas, in 1888, to Andrew and Laura 
Davis, who had been born into slavery.  Andrew Davis was from Texas, but his parents had 
come from Virginia.  Laura Davis was from Arkansas, but her parents had come from 
Alabama.  Silas was their third son.  Andrew Davis was listed as a farmer in the 1900 U.S. 
Census; the two older boys in the family were listed as farm laborers, and 12-year old Silas 
was listed as being at school.  By 1920, Silas had married Willie C. Thompson of Dale, 
Texas.  They lived at Lytton Springs in Caldwell County, where Silas farmed.  Silas was 
ordained in 1925; the 1930 U.S. Census listed him as a Baptist preacher in Seguin, Texas.  
After a short stint in San Antonio, where he was also a preacher, Silas L. Davis came to 
Austin in 1937 as the pastor of David Chapel Missionary Baptist Church; he organized 
Mount Cavalry Missionary Baptist Church two years later, and served as its pastor until 
his death at the age of 100 in 1988.  Reverend Davis was known as a highly principled man, 
and through his presence and ministry, he had enormous influence in the East Austin 
African-American community.  He was succeeded in the ministry by his grandson, the Rev. 
L.K. Jones.  In 1998, the City of Austin renamed Washington Avenue in front of Mount 
Calvary in honor of Reverend S.L. Davis. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The house is not listed in any City survey. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

This is an extremely difficult case.  The house has obvious historical significance as the 
house that Rev. S.L. Davis built for his family in 1949, but the house is in a serious state of 
deterioration and is a danger to public health and safety.  The house has been boarded up 
to secure it, but major structural issues remain.   
The life and work of Rev. S.L. Davis are commemorated by the designation of his Mount 
Calvary Missionary Baptist Church as a historic landmark.  It is truly unfortunate that 
this man’s house has fallen into a state of complete disrepair as to almost require its 
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demolition at this point, as this would be a complement to Mount Calvary as a testament to 
the legacy of this great man and his works.  However, staff does not believe that the house 
can be preserved at this point, so must reluctantly recommend release of the permit, but 
staff strongly recommends that the applicant erect an interpretive marker on the site to 
commemorate the location of the home of Rev. S.L. Davis.  If the house were in better 
condition, staff would recommend the completion of a City of Austin Documentation 
Package, but the sorry state of this house would do little to glorify the legacy of Rev. Davis 
at this point.  
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LOCATION MAP 
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1507 E. 14th  Street 
ca. 1949 
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OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1507 E. 14th Street 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
September, 2015 
 
1992  Willie C. Davis, owner 
  No occupation listed 
 
1985-86 Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
1981  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
1977  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
1973  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
1968  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
1962  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
  Rear: Mrs. Scotty Blakemore, renter 
   Maid 
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1959  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
  Rear: Mrs. Scotty Blakemore, renter 
   Maid, Ledwidge Student House, 2101-03 Nueces Street. 
 
1955  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
Rear: Vessie Davis, renter 
 Maid 
 
 Valena Simmons, renter 
 Maid 

 
1952  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 2111 Washington Avenue. 
 
NOTE:  The current house was built in 1949.  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis owned an earlier 
house on this site – the following is the occupancy history for that house, which is no longer 
extant. 
 
 
1949  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 

Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 1150 Coleto Street. 
 
1947  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 
  Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 1150 Coleto Street. 
 
1944-45 Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 
  Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 1150 Coleto Street. 
 
1941  Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis, owners 
  Pastor, Mount Calvary Missionary Baptist Church, 1192 Angelina Street. 
 
1939  Harry F. and Hattie Nesby, owners 
  Laborer 

NOTE:  Rev. Silas L. and Willie Davis are listed as the renters of the house at 
2301 E. 12th Street; he was the pastor of the Davis Chapel Baptist Church, 2209 
E. 14th Street. 

 
1937  Rev. J.S. Hansbrough, owner 
  Pastor, 19th Street Baptist Church, 1500 E. 15th Street. 
  NOTE:  Rev. Silas L. and Willie Davis are not listed in the directory. 
 
1935  George and Amanda Shields, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1932-33 John E. and Rosa L. Williams, renters 
  Janitor, B’Nai Brith Hillel Association, 2228 Guadalupe Street. 

NOTE:  George and Amanda Shields are listed at 1505 E. 14th Street; he had no 
occupation shown. 

 
1930-31 Ollie and Birda McClain (colored), renters 
  Truck driver, J.R. Reed Music Company, 805 Congress Avenue. 
 



 D.12 - 7 
1929  Ollie and Berta McClain (colored), renters 
  No occupation listed 
 
1927  Ollie and Birdie McClain (colored), renters 
  Drayman, J.R. Reed Music Company, 805 Congress Avenue. 
 
1924  Rev. Arthur R. and Juliet Wheeler (colored), renters 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  Ollie and Birdie McClain are listed at 1200 E. 10th Street; he was a truck 
driver for J.R. Reed Music Company, 805 Congress Avenue. 

 
1922  Cora DeWitty (colored), renter 
  No occupation listed 

Also listed are Alex DeWitty, no occupation shown; Arthur DeWitty, no 
occupation shown; Ernest DeWitty, no occupation shown; and Hubert DeWitty, 
no occupation shown. 

 
1920  Cora DeWitty (colored), renter 
  Laundress 

Also listed are Arthur DeWitty, a laborer; Oscar DeWitty, a laborer; and Ransom 
DeWitty, a laborer. 

 
1918  Louis E. and Amelia Thomson, renters 

Blacksmith, Peter Thomson, blacksmith, carriage, buggy, and wagon works, 410 
Colorado Street. 

  NOTE:  Cora DeWitty is not listed in the directory. 
 
1916  J. William Thomson 
  Blacksmith, Peter Thomson, 410 Colorado Street. 
 
1914  J. William Thomson 

Blacksmith, Peter Thomson, blacksmith, carriage and wagon manufacturer, 410 
Colorado Street. 

 
1912-13 J. William Thomson 

Blacksmith, Peter Thomson, blacksmith, carriage and wagon manufacturer, 
horse-shoer, machine forger, 410 Colorado Street. 

 
1910-11 Ken Cameron 

Agent, American National Insurance Company of Galveston, 117½ E. 6th Street. 
NOTE:  J. William Thomson is listed at 510 E. 7th Street; he was a blacksmith for 
Alvin Thomson, blacksmith and horse-shoer, 506 Trinity Street. 

 
1909-10 The address is not listed in the directory. 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES 
Rev. Silas L. and Willie C. Davis (ca. 1949 - 1994) 
His 197 World War I draft registration card shows Silas Leonard Davis was 29 years old, and 
had been born at Dale, Texas.  He was living at Dale, where he was a farmer.  He had a wife, 
and claimed a physical disability. He was of medium height and a stout build.  
 
The 1920 U.S. Census shows Silas L. and Willie Davis as renters of a farm in Lytton Springs, 
Caldwell County, Texas.  Silas L. Davis was 31, had been born in Texas, and was a farmer.  
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Willie Davis was 25, had been born in Texas, and had no occupation listed.  They had 2 
children listed with them: Od, 3; and Dimple, 5 months. 
 
The 1930 U.S. Census shows S.L. and Willie Davis as the owners of a house in Seguin, Texas, 
which was worth $500.  S.L. Davis was 42, had been born in Texas, and was a preacher in a 
Baptist Church.  Willie Davis was 33, had been born in Texas, and had no occupation listed.  
They had 6 children. 
 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Silas and Willie Davis a the owners of this property; the former 
house on this site was worth $1,300.  Silas Davis was 48, and was listed as a preacher.  Willie 
Davis was 43.  They had  children living with them.  The family had lived in San Antonio in 1935. 
 
Willie C. Davis died in 1994. 
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From St. John Regular Missionary Baptist Association 

One Hundredth Annual Session, July 17-30, 1967 
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Obituary of Rev. S.L. Davis 

Austin American-Statesman, March 31, 1988 
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Obituary of Rev. S.L. Davis 

Austin American-Statesman, April 1, 1988 
 

 
Building permit to Rev. S.L. Davis for the construction of a box garage and cow shed at the 

former house on this site (1939) 
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Building permit to Rev. S.L. Davis for general repairs to the former house on this site (1943) 

 

 
Building permit to Rev. S.L. Davis for the construction of this house (1949) 
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Building permit to Rev. S.L. Davis for the rear addition (1967) 
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